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1.  Section B Will DOE establish a CLIN and ELIN for the Project 

Management staff? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. 

 

2.  Section B.2, 

CLIN 0001. 

May the bidders assume that incumbent staff is available to 

provide support for Transition and if so, who bears the cost 

for incumbent support? To what extent/levels of management 

and operations support of the incumbent workforce will be 

made available to support transition?  What, if any, 

limitations will the new contractor have with meeting and 

interviewing incumbents?  Will onsite meetings with 

incumbent workforce be allowed and space allowed for 

meetings?  

Yes, incumbent support will be available and government 

furnished.  The current FSS contract and applicable 

transition language can be found on the PPPO webpage. 

 

Please see Section C.3.1 for information on space available 

to support transition.  During the transition period, DOE 

will provide to the Contractor administrative office area for 

approximately 6 individuals in a trailer facility adjacent to 

the X-1000 on site. 

 

3.  Section B.2 Would you clarify the duration of the option period?  

Guidance provided in Section B.2 says it is a “two year 

option period”, while the chart for B.3 Pricing shows it as 22 

months as does the guidance in Section F.3? 

 

Sections B.3 and F.3 are correct; the option period is 22 

months. 

 

An upcoming amendment will delete the following 

language in B.2: 

The two-year option periods is covered by CLINs … 

 

And will replace it with:  

The 22-month option period is covered by CLINs… 

 

4.  Section B.3 Contract Pricing. Please clarify how offerors are to price 

PWS elements included in Section C.2.0 Management and 

Administration since no CLINs or ELINs were provided to 

capture pricing for these work scope elements. 

 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   
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5.  Section B.3 Should we spread the costs associated with fulfilling the 

requirements of Section C.2.0 Management and 

Administration across the Fixed Price and Labor Hour ELINs 

or is there some other way DOE wants us to account for these 

costs? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. 

 

PWS elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and 

should be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

6.  Section 

B.3(d) 

This section states: “The maximum quantity of supplies or 

services the Government will acquire under the IDIQ CLINs 

will not cumulatively exceed $30M.” The cover letter 

provided with the solicitation indicated that this CLIN would 

be changed to allow for a maximum quantity of $50M.  Will 

this be changed to $50M in an amendment? 

There was an error in the cover letter, Section B.4(d) is 

correct. The maximum quantity of supplies or services the 

Government will acquire under the IDIQ CLINs will not 

cumulatively exceed $30M. 

 

This will not be changed. 

7.  Section 

B.3(d) 

This section states: “The IDIQ CLINs and ELINs correspond 

to Section C.5.0. The Government may issue Firm-Fixed-

Price and/or Cost Reimbursement Task Orders depending on 

the nature of the requirement for the delivery of work. 

Attachment J-10, are ELINs Fixed Unit Rates applicable to 

the pricing of Firm-Fixed-Price Task Orders”. Will these 

same Fixed Unit Rates be applicable to the pricing of Cost 

Reimbursement Task Orders” 

The Attachment J-10 ELINs Fixed Unit Rates are 

applicable to the pricing of Firm-Fixed-Price Task Orders, 

not cost reimbursement task orders 

8.  Section 

C.1.1 

The PWS states that Wastren-EnergX is the incumbent ISS 

contract holder. Is this contract similar in size and scope as 

the impending award? 

The current contract is generally similar in size and scope 

as the PWS.   

9.  Section 

C.1.1 

This section states: “Additionally, some direct services are 

provided via work authorization to ACP through this 

Contract (See Section J, Attachment J-16, “Work 

Authorizations”). The Contractor shall support DOE in full 

cost recovery of services provided to ACP.”  Attachment J-16 

provides historical examples of modifications to work orders 

that have been issued under the incumbent contract. With 

respect to recovery of cost, the only direction for the current 

Attachment J-16 includes work authorizations for services 

provided to ACP from DOE through the ISS contract.  The 

contractor is responsible for provision of these services as 

described throughout Section C, such as but not limited to 

telephones, pagers, HSPD-12 badging.  The contractor 

shall also support DOE in invoicing ACP for services 

within this contract provided via the work authorizations.  

Services to ACP is the only current expected cost recovery 
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FSS contractor is to provide monthly statements of the actual 

cost of the services rendered. Please validate that this is the 

only cost recovery requirement for the new ISS contractor, or 

clarify what the expected cost recovery efforts will be. 

effort 

10.  Section 

C.1.1, 6
th
 

paragraph. 

Requires the Contractor to participate and adhere to the site 

established shared site process.  Will the DOE provide a copy 

of the established shared site process? 

The Shared Site Agreement, Shared Site Charter, and D&D 

Contractor’s Shared Site procedure have now been posted 

to the Portsmouth Infrastructure website Documents 

Library at: 

https://www.emcbc.doe.gov/SEB/PortsmouthISS/Documen

t%20Library.php  

 

11.  Section 

C.1.3, 1
st
 

paragraph 

Requires the Contractor to furnish all personnel as specified 

in Section J, Attachment J-8.C.1.3, “Minimum Qualifications 

of Personnel.”  This attachment specifies qualification 

requirements (i.e., education, experience) for the Principal 

Project Manager and Security Manager.  The Request for 

Proposal for Paducah Infrastructure Support Services did not 

include any minimum qualification requirements for these 

positions.   Will the DOE revise the personnel qualifications 

to match those specified in the Paducah Infrastructure 

Support Services RFP? 

Although the requirements are of a similar nature, the 

Paducah ISS and Portsmouth ISS procurements two 

separate procurements and some of the requirements may 

differ between them.  However, DOE has reviewed some of 

the qualifications and an upcoming amendment will include 

a revised Attachment J-8.C.1.3, “Minimum Qualifications 

of Personnel.”  

12.  Section 

C.1.3, 1
st
 

paragraph 

Requires the Contractor to furnish all personnel as specified 

in Section J, Attachment J-8.C.1.3, “Minimum Qualifications 

of Personnel.”  This attachment identifies expected 

qualifications for numerous “non-Key” positions. Will DOE 

consider eliminating these expected qualifications since 

imposition of these qualifications could pre-empt incumbent 

personnel from qualifying for the proposed position? 

DOE has reviewed some of the qualifications and an 

upcoming amendment will include a revised Attachment J-

8.C.1.3, “Minimum Qualifications of Personnel.” 

13.  Section 

C.2.2.1 

Section C.2.2.1, Worker Safety and Health, 5
th
 paragraph 

states that the D&D Contractor will provide safety and health 

personal protective equipment (PPE) to infrastructure 

The D&D Contractor will provide general PPE to the ISS 

Contractor personnel to include safety glasses, hearing 

protections, with the exception of specialized PPE needs, 

https://www.emcbc.doe.gov/SEB/PortsmouthISS/Document%20Library.php
https://www.emcbc.doe.gov/SEB/PortsmouthISS/Document%20Library.php
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contractor workers. Does this include all PPE to include 

safety glasses, hearing protection, gloves, fire retardant 

clothing, etc.? 

such as arc flash protective equipment. 

14.  Section 

C.2.2 

ESH&Q Program: Will the ISS contractor be responsible for 

maintaining a site-wide, all contractor encompassing ESH&Q 

Program? 

The contractor will be responsible for maintaining an 

ESH&Q program for the work scope under the ISS PWS. 

15.  Section 

C.2.2 

Reference Section C.2.2 ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY, 

HEALTH, AND QUALITY (ESH&Q) PROGRAM,  C.2.2.1 

Worker Safety and Health;  C.2.2.2 Integrated Safety 

Management;  C.2.2.3 Occupational Radiation Protection 

Program. Where does DOE want these services priced as 

there is no CLIN or ELIN currently? 

   

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10 

16.  Section 

C.2.2 

Section C.2.2 ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY, HEALTH, AND 

QUALITY (ESH&Q) PROGRAM,  C.2.2.1 Worker Safety 

and Health;  C.2.2.2 Integrated Safety Management;  C.2.2.3 

Occupational Radiation Protection Program. Does PWS 

C.2.5 thru C.2.5.2 also go with CLIN x0101 and ELIN A103 

and PWS C.3.4.1 or is this to be priced elsewhere?  If so 

where is that CLIN and ELIN? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

 

Section C.2.5.1 and C.2.5.2 is associated with property 

management responsibilities for assigned real and personal 

property while Section C.3.4.1 describes services provided 

to DOE and the D&D contractor. 

17.  Section 

C.2.2.3 

Section C.2.2.3 discusses requirements for compliance with a 

documented radiation Protection Program (RPP), including 

occupational radiation protection and radiation protection of 

the public and environment.  The second paragraph states:  

“The Contractor shall submit the written RPP documentation 

(see Section J, Attachment J-4, “List of Deliverables”) to 

DOE for approval within 40 calendar days of NTP.  In 

addition, updates shall be submitted to DOE for review and 

The RPP and Environmental Radiological Protection (ERP) 

Program are separate deliverables, driven by 10 CFR 835 

and DOE O 458.1, respectively, as specified in paragraph 

C.2.2.3 and J-4. The time frames should be applied as 

specified in J-4. Paragraph C.2.2.3 should have identified 

the ERP Program as a J-4 deliverable. 

 

An upcoming amendment will revise Section C.2.2.3 to 
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approval at least 90 calendar days prior to when any 

significant changes or additions are made.” Section J, 

Attachment J-4, “List of Deliverables” lists two deliverables 

for Paragraph C.2.2.3.  Deliverable #12 is for the Radiation 

Protection Program and #13 is for the Environmental 

Radiological Protection Program.  Deliverable 12 is specified 

to be due within 40 calendar days of NTP, in agreement with 

the quoted paragraph discussion above.  Deliverable 13 is 

specified to be due within 60 calendar days of NTP.  There is 

no specific mention of this deliverable in Paragraph C.2.2.3.  

We understand the Environmental Radiological Protection 

Program to be considered RPP, and if we are correct in our 

understanding, wouldn’t it be due for approval within 40 

calendar days of NTP as specified in C.2.2.3? 

identify the ERP Program as a J-4 deliverable 

18.  Section 

C.2.2.3 

Provide workload for radiological activities performed by 

ES&H personnel. 

HP services will be performed by the D&D contractor. 

19.  Section 

C.2.2.3 

Will the contractor be required to develop an ALARA plan? The contractor will adopt the D&D contractors RPP and 

ALARA plan, or develop and submit there own. 

20.  Section 

C.2.2.4 

Section C.2.2.4 Emergency Management. Where does DOE 

want these services priced as there is no CLIN or ELIN 

currently?   

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

21.  Section 

C.2.2.4 

Section C.2.2.4 Emergency Management. Will DOE provide 

the level of support required or historical workload data to 

provide this support on this contract? 

Section C.2.2.4 has been revised for clarity. An upcoming 

amendment will include a this revision and a new J.8 

attachment “Attachment J-8.C.2.2.4 and C.2.6, “Support to 

EOC/JPIC and Annual Public Events” ”that contains a 

summary level clarification of what is required on Section 

C.2.2.4 
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22.  Section 

C.2.2.5  

Section C.2.2.5, QUALITY ASSURANCE, paragraph 4, 1st 

sentence States, “The Contractor shall develop and 

implement a comprehensive Issues Management System…. 

Will the Government provide the incumbent Contractor’s 

electronic Issues Management System to the successful 

Offeror for evaluation and/or use? Will DOE provide the 

historical cost for materials, equipment, and ODCs per CLIN 

or ELIN? 

Yes, The current electronic issues management system will 

be transitioned to the new contractor. 

 

Historic ODC data is being compiled and will be provided 

in the reference library. 

 

23.  Section 

C.2.2.5 

Reference C.2.2.5 Quality Assurance and C.2.2.6 Contractor 

Assurance System. Where does DOE want these services 

priced as there is no CLIN or ELIN currently? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

24.  Section 

C.2.2.10 

Please clarify waste management until turnover to the D&D 

contractor. 

The expected waste management activities is described in 

Section C.2.2.10, and includes compliant initial 

characterization, accumulation and storage prior to turnover 

to the D&D contractor. 

25.  Section 

C.2.2.10 

Please define levels and types of radioactive waste to be 

managed by contractor. 

It is not anticipated the Contractor will manage radioactive 

waste.   

 

26.  Section 

C.2.2.10 

C.2.2.10 Waste Management and Pollution Prevention. Is the 

ISS contractor only responsible for collecting recyclable 

materials from the facilities listed in Attachment J-15that lists 

the ISS as the Responsible Contractor?  Provide collection 

frequencies for recyclable materials.  Provide workload for 

quantities (lbs.) collected as required by Attachment J-4 #29. 

The Contractor is responsible for collecting office space 

recyclable material such as paper, cans, plastic for facilities 

assigned janitorial services in Attachment J-15.  

Additionally, the contractor is responsible for collecting 

recyclable material associated with IT Support and 

Computer Services equipment (e.g., toner cartridges, 

shredded computer components, excessed computers) with 

the exception of paper from all DOE facilities serviced 

under Section C.3.3.3. 
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27.  Section 

C.2.2.10 

Where does DOE want these services priced as there is no 

CLIN or ELIN currently? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

28.  Section 

C.2.3 

Please provide historical or projected workload (tasks and 

hours) for engineering services provided by the ISS 

contractor. 

The Contractor should develop their estimate based on the 

RFP, Section C Performance Work Statement and 

supporting attachments. 

 

29.  Section 

C.2.3 

Section C.2.3 states that, among other engineers, radiological 

engineers may be required according to the contractor’s 

determination. What specific Engineering requirements exist? 

This is a very nebulous section. Can the DOE provide more 

input as to the nature of the Engineering required? Will the 

contractor be responsible for providing any nuclear 

engineering or will we be involved in the nuclear D&D work 

at all? 

The engineering is in support of the Section C.3 scope 

described and in the context of assigned facilities. 

The Contractor should develop their estimate based on the 

performance work statement and supporting attachments.  

The Contractor is not assigned nuclear facilities and will 

not require a nuclear engineer. 

 

30.  Section 

C.2.3 

Will DOE provide the level of support required or historical 

workload data to provide engineering support on this 

contract? 

The Contractor should develop their estimate based on the 

RFP, Section C Performance Work Statement and 

supporting attachments. 

 

31.  Section 

C.2.3 

Where does DOE want these services priced as there is no 

CLIN or ELIN currently? 

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   

32.  Section 

C.2.3 

Please define responsibilities and level of work expected for 

PEs registered in Ohio and the number required of PEs 

required over the past 5 years. 

The Contractor should develop their estimate based on the 

RFP, Section C Performance Work Statement and 

supporting attachments. 
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33.  Section 

C.2.4.1 

Please identify the current version of Primavera System. The current version of the Primavera system is P6 - 

Version 7 

34.  Section 

C.2.4.1 

Is the Primavera software referenced in the last paragraph 

Government or contractor furnished?  This software is not 

shown in the “List of maintenance software and other 

agreements” file in the Reference Library.  If contractor 

furnished is it covered by the Cost Reimbursement CLIN? 

The Primavera software is contractor provided and cost 

reimbursable. 

35.  Section 

C.2.4.2 

Please provide expected level of effort for these status 

meetings. 

Section C.2.4.2 states ”The meetings include, but are not 

limited to; D&D project weekly planning meeting, 

Contractor project weekly meeting, monthly Shared Site 

meeting, monthly Contractor performance review, and 

relevant monthly Integrated Project Team meetings. 

 

36.  Section 

C.2.5.1 

Please provide historical or projected workload for space 

management planning services provided by the ISS 

contractor. 

Per Section C.2.5.1, the Contractor shall provide space 

management, moves, etc. for its personnel.  The Contractor 

should estimate this based on facilities utilized and 

expected personnel numbers.  Office relocation for others is 

provided for in Section C.3.4.1. 

37.  Section 

C.2.6 

Will DOE provide specifics regarding type and level of 

support required to support this PWS requirement? 

Section C.2.6 has been revised for clarity. An upcoming 

amendment will include a this revision and a new J.8 

attachment “Attachment J-8.C.2.2.4 and C.2.6, “Support to 

EOC/JPIC and Annual Public Events” ”that contains a 

summary level clarification of what is required on Section 

C.2.6 

38.  Section 

C.2.6 

Where does DOE want these services priced as there is no 

CLIN or ELIN currently?   

Please see Section C.1.5, where it indicates that C.2.0 

scope is applicable to the FFP work and that there are no 

ELINS directly associated with the C.2.0 elements. PWS 

elements in Section 2.0 are not directly priced and should 

be indirectly priced with using Attachment J-10.   
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39.  Section C.3 Are mechanic, telephone and computer technician hand tools 

Government furnished property? 

Existing non-accountable property will be transferred to the 

new contractor.  A summary of non-accountable property 

will be included in the reference library 

40.  Section 

C.3.2 

Is workload for ACP program support included in the 

workload provided in J-8, C.3.2, Table 1, Security Services 

Workload History, and Heading - HSPD 12? 
 

ACP support workload is included in attachment J-8, C.3.2, 

Table 1, Security Services Workload History. 

An upcoming amendment will contain an updated 

attachment. 

41.  Section 

C.3.2 

This section states “The Contractor coordinates the random 

drug testing for all prime contractors on site other than the 

DUF6 project and DOE.”  Who is responsible for the cost of 

drug testing? 

The employing contractor is responsible for cost of needed 

drug testing of its employees 

42.  Section 

C.3.2 

At the end of section C.3.2 is a requirement that the 

Contractor “provide security program support to ACP as 

needed to support the DOE work authorization (WA #815218 

FSS Security & HSPD-12 Security Badging). The Contractor 

shall prepare invoicing to support DOE in full cost recovery 

of services to ACP.” Sections C.3.2.3.1.3, DOE Security 

Badge Program, and C.3.2.5, Personnel Security (PERSEC), 

specify HSPD-12 security badging for ACP. Is there any 

other “security program support” that the contractor will be 

required to provide to ACP? 

Please refer to attachment J-16, which also includes 

locksmith services which are captured in Attachment J-

8.C.3.2 Table 1. 

43.  Section 

C.3.2 

The number of D&D projects will affect the Site Security 

Plan, MC&A plans, and the need for project security plans. 

Can DOE tell us how many D&D projects are currently 

active at the Portsmouth site? 

The current D&D proposed schedule will be posted in the 

reference library. 

 

44.  Section 

C.3.2.1 

Will existing, policies, plans, procedures, protocols, forms, 

MOU’s, etc. be turned over or made available to the 

incoming contractor during the transition period? 

Yes, existing, policies, plans, procedures, protocols, forms, 

MOU’s will be turned over to the incoming contractor 

during the transition period. 
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45.  Section 

C.3.2.1 

Performance Work Statement C.3.2.1.2, Attachment J-4, 

“List of Deliverables”. Deliverable #54 (Respond to S&S 

Data Calls) specifies the schedule for deliverable to be:  

“Upon DOE Request”.  The deliverable identifies the 

requirement to be in C.3.2.1.2.  We do not see a requirement 

in paragraph C.3.2.1.2 that specifically addresses response to 

data calls. Is there a timeframe for response to the specific 

Data Call?  (E.g., Within 24 working hours, etc.) 

Review within 24 hours unless otherwise indicated. 

46.  Section 

C.3.2.3.1.6 

Performance Work Statement C.3.2.3.1.6 and J-8.3.2.3.1.6. 

What are the hours the work stations are manned?   

In combination, both work stations cover 24 hours a day, 

seven days a week. 

47.  Section 

C.3.2.3.2 

Section C.3.2.3.2, Intrusion Detection and Assessment 

Systems, requires that the Contractor “evaluate, design, 

establish, and maintain the protection strategy for use of 

intrusion detection and assessment systems at the site (see 

Section J, Attachment J-4, “List of Deliverables”). The 

program plan shall be submitted to the Government for 

information within 90 calendar days of the NTP, and updated 

annually thereafter or when significant changes occur. The 

Contractor shall make this protection strategy available to the 

D&D contractor. The D&D contractor will be responsible for 

monitoring detection systems. The Contractor shall maintain 

the operability of the system installed in the X-720 Records 

Center.”  Currently, all alarm monitoring is done by WEMS, 

the ISS contractor, and not by FBP, the D&D contractor.  Is 

this function being transferred to FBP? 

Alarm monitoring is being transferred to the D&D 

contractor. 

48.  Section 

C.3.2.5 

Is the ISS contractor responsible for the cost of drug testing 

for its employees? 

Yes 
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49.  Section 

C.3.2.5.1 

Performance Work Statement C.3.2.5.1, J, Attachment J-4, 

“List of Deliverables”. Deliverable #90 (Notify the ODFSA 

of events or situations affecting the status of an applicant’s or 

employee’s security clearance.) specifies under the 

“Comments” column “The Contractor shall notify the 

ODFSA of any of the following conditions affecting the 

status of an applicant’s or employee’s security clearance. (13-

point list follows at C.3.2.5.1). We find several lists in 

C.3.2.5.1, but none 13-points.  We believe the correct list to 

be either 5 or 14-points.  Would the Government please 

clarify this discrepancy? 

Please see Section C.3.2.5.1, second paragraph.  The 

conditions are itemized as 1, 2 (a though i, [9 items]), 3, 4 

and 5.  Total of 13 identified items to be reported that affect 

an individual’s clearance. 

50.  Section 

C.3.3.2.9 

Deliverable #102 ((Restoration Priority List) identifies the 

requirement to be Paragraph C.3.3.2.10.   This paragraph 

discusses system changes and not restoration priority lists.  It 

appears the correct reference should be C.3.3.2.9, 

Restoration. Would the Government please clarify if the 

correct reference should be C.3.3.2.9, Restoration? 

Yes, the correct reference should be C.3.3.2.9, Restoration.  

An upcoming amendment will revise Attachment J-4. 

 

51.  Section 

C.3.4 

Are craft and trades employees who provide asset operations 

and management services required to wear contractor 

furnished uniforms or coveralls? 

If coveralls are needed as PPE, the D&D contractor 

provides coveralls.  Use of uniforms is not required, and at 

the discretion of the contractor.   

52.  Section 

C.3.4.1 

C.3.4.1 Property Management Services.  Workload shows 15 

relocations performed. Are these relocations individual 

employee relocations or whole department relocations. What 

is the man hour workload for these services? 

The relocations are individual employees and their office 

equipment, not whole department relocations. 

 

53.  Section 

C.3.4.1.1.2 

C.3.4.1.1.2 and Attachment J-10. Are office moves priced in 

ELIN A104 or A509? 

Please see Section C.3.4.1.1.2 Relocation Services (15 

annual moves) which should be priced in A103.  A509 is 

for additional moves under IDIQ task order 

54.  Section 

C.3.4.1.3 

The PWS states “The Contractor shall manage their GSA 

fleet required to provide services under this Contract”……….  

What is the contractor’s GSA Fleet?  Please clarify 

Please see Attachment J-8.C.3.4.1 Fleet Vehicles.  The 

GSA fleet includes the GSA vehicles assigned to the 

contractor in completion of PWS. 
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55.  Section 

C.3.4.2.2.1 

C.3.4.2.2.1 Level I Maintenance or Service. Please provide 

workload for contractor maintained equipment listed in J-3. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant Historical 

Maintenance As Captured by the ISS Contractor for 

historic information on equipment work orders.  These 

historical data shall not be considered to be representative 

or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

56.  Section 

C.3.4.2.2.2 

C.3.4.2.2.2 Level II Maintenance or Service. Please provide 

workload for contractor maintained equipment listed in J-3. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant Historical 

Maintenance As Captured by the ISS Contractor for 

historic information on equipment work orders.  These 

historical data shall not be considered to be representative 

or predictive of future needs or costs. 

57.  Section 

C.3.4.2.2.2 

Where does DOE want these services priced as there is no 

CLIN or ELIN currently? 

The PWS element is not directly priced and should be 

indirectly priced with Section 3.0 scope elements using 

Attachment J-10.   

 

58.  Section 

C.3.4.2.2.2 

Section C.3.4.2.2.2 – Level II Maintenance of Service and 

C.3.4.2.3 Level II Maintenance Priority Categories.  Will 

DOE provide a listing of previous Level II Maintenance 

Requests for 2009 thru 2014 to allow bidders to understand 

historical Level II Maintenance request to base expectations 

for future requests?  This information will assist offerors in 

developing accurate FFP cost estimate for the Facilities 

Maintenance. 

 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

59.  Section 

C.3.4.2.3 

C.3.4.2.3 specifies that the contractor “shall respond” within 

specified time limits to the various priority categories of 

maintenance requests.  Would DOE please define what 

qualifies as an acceptable contractor “response”?  Complete 

resolution of the problem within the specified time limit is 

Section C.3.4.2.3 provides information on events in excess 

of the limit of liability and authorization from the CO.  

Response entails responding to the site of the 

failure/condition with trained and qualified staff to initiate 

a corrective action. 
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unrealistic if parts have to be ordered or if the maintenance 

requires DOE approval of an IDIQ request (i.e., exceeds the 

C.3.4.2.2.2 level of $2,500 or 120 hours).  Is contacting the 

requestor within the specified time limit an acceptable 

response?  Or, is arrival on site with a single worker an 

acceptable response?  Or, is initial communication with the 

customer and adding the activity to the schedule an adequate 

response?   Please clarify the expectation for “response”. 

60.  Section 

C.3.4.2.3 

Section C.3.4.2.3 Level II Maintenance Priority Categories; 

C.3.4.2.3.1 Priority 1 – Emergency; C.3.4.2.3.2 Priority 2 – 

Urgent; C.3.4.2.3.3 Priority 3 – Routine. Will DOE provide 

the level of support required or historical workload data to 

provide this support on this contract by each priority and by 

each type service for that priority? 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

61.  Section 

C.3.4.2.4 

In Section C.3.4.2.4 Computerized Maintenance 

Management System (CMMS) it states “The Contractor shall 

fully utilize the computer software program SOMAX (Somax 

G3 3.15) or approved equivalent as their CMMS. The 

Contractor shall operate and maintain the CMMS…...” Is the 

CMMS considered GFE and the contractor only has to use, 

update, and maintain it? 

 

Yes, the available software, equipment, and data will be 

GFE.  The software license is cost reimbursable. 

62.  Section 

C.3.4.2.4.1 

Section C.3.4.2.4.1, Scheduled Maintenance specifies eight 

(8) specific categories of information to be captured in the 

CMMS.  Does the current version of SOMAX at the site 

capture these eight (8) specific categories or will 

modifications to the software be required? 

The current version of SOMAX utilized at the site has the 

capability to capture this information. 

63.  Section 

C.3.4.2.4.2 

Section C.3.4.2.4.2, Maintenance Request Reception and 

Processing specifies nine (9) specific types of information to 

be captured in the CMMS for each service order received. 

The current version of SOMAX utilized at the site has the 

capability to capture this information. 
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Does the current version of SOMAX at the site capture these 

nine (9) specific types of information or will modifications to 

the software be required? 

64.  Section 

C.3.4.2.4.3 

Section C.3.4.2.4.3, Completed Maintenance Specifies seven 

(7) specific types of information to be captured in the CMMS 

for completed activities or service. Does the current version 

of SOMAX at the site capture these seven (7) specific types 

of information or will modifications to the software be 

required? 

The current version of SOMAX utilized at the site has the 

capability to capture this information. 

65.  Section 

C.3.4.2.4 

Section C.3.4.2.4, Computerized Maintenance Management 

System. Are parts and supplies currently tracked within 

SOMAX?  All FIMS categories?  Equipment?  Fleet? 

The current SOMAX database may not be inclusive of all 

parts, supplies, FIMS categories, fleet, or equipment. 

 

66.  Section 

C.3.4.3.1 

Please confirm that this falls under Cost Reimbursement 

CLIN x401, ELIN A402, if not will DOE provide historical 

workload of what has been replaced? 

Please see Section C.4.2, Replacement of building 

furnishings (not repair or replacement of installed facility 

equipment) is cost reimbursable. 

67.  Section 

C.3.4.3.2 

Section C.3.4.3.2 Level I Maintenance for Facilities 

(Preventive and Scheduled Maintenance for Facilities). 

Please provide workload for facilities and equipment covered 

by this requirement. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

68.  Section 

C.3.4.3.2 

C.3.4.3.2 Level I Maintenance for Facilities (Preventive and 

Scheduled Maintenance for Facilities). Please provide a 

listing of all facilities and equipment covered by this 

requirement, along with the Level I maintenance frequencies 

that that correspond to each equipment item. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  
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69.  Section 

C.3.4.3.3 

Please provide workload for facilities and equipment covered 

by this requirement. Provide for Priority 1, Priority 2, and 

Priority 3. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

70.  Section 

C.3.4.3.4 

Please provide workload for Level I and Level II 

requirements. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

71.  Section 

C.3.4.3.4 

This section outlines the “type of” and level of effort for the 

various types of maintenance to be performed.  There is 

reference of a Maintenance Shop; “A portion of the X-700 

facility currently houses maintenance shops and personnel for 

the incumbent contractor. The X-751 GCEP Mobile 

Equipment Garage is expected to become available and 

incumbent personnel and equipment relocated from X-700 to 

X-751. Relocation may not be completed prior to transition to 

this Contract, therefore the relocation from the X-700 facility 

would occur during the period of performance of this 

Contract.”. There is nothing in the specification that outlines 

what the scope of this move would be.  What are the 

expectations? Additionally, there are no references for 

equipment that you would expect to find in a maintenance 

facility in Attachment J-3.  Is there a list of equipment that 

would be available for use in the maintenance shop? 

 

Offerors are made aware of the potential of the move from 

the X-700 facility.  The move itself will be performed by 

the D&D contractor or added as a task order to the ISS 

contract. A summary J-8 attachment will be posted 

providing information on non-accountable 

property/equipment. 
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72.  Section 

C.3.4.3.4 

Will DOE provide a complete list for each of the item listed 

below for Level I maintenance by Building to properly staff 

and price this area? 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs. 

73.  Section 

C.3.4.3.4 

Will DOE provide the number of Emergency, Urgent and 

Routine Service Call for Level II for each of the item listed 

below and number of hours associated with each level of 

service call to properly staff and price this area?  Also what 

CLIN and ELIN will Level II be priced against? 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

There is no distinction in ELIN pricing for Level 1 versus 

Level II work.  Both work activities are associated with 

Section C.3.4.3 which is associated with ELIN A104 

74.  Section 

C.3.4.4.3.6 

Section C.3.4.4.3.6 Bridge Maintenance and Repair. Please 

provide workload for Level I and Level II requirements. 

Contractor should estimate from provided data.  Please see 

facility descriptions and Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion 

Plant Historical Maintenance As Captured by the ISS 

Contractor for historic information on equipment work 

orders.  These historical data shall not be considered to be 

representative or predictive of future needs or costs.  

 

75.  Section 

C.3.4.4.3.6 

We request that DOE provide the latest Inspection Report for 

Bridges that documents results of the inspection(s) and 

provides the condition/deficiencies along with a prioritized 

list of repairs with estimated price for repair. 

The latest bridge inspection will be added to the reference 

library. 

76.  Section 

C.3.5 

Are craft and trades employees who provide facility services 

required to wear contractor furnished uniforms or coveralls? 

If coveralls are needed as PPE, the D&D contractor 

provides coveralls.  Use of uniforms is not required, and at 

the discretion of the contractor.   

 


